
PLANNING COMMISSION 

AGENDA 

June 24, 2014 

1



CITY OF OAK HARBOR AGENDA 
PLANNING COMMISSION June 24, 2014 
REGULAR MEETING 7:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL 

ROLL CALL: FAKKEMA  WASINGER

JENSEN  PETERSON

FIKSE  FREEMAN

SCHLECHT

Page 4  
1. Approval of Minutes – May 27, 2014

2. Public Comment – Planning Commission will accept public comment for items not
otherwise on the agenda for the first 15 minutes of the Planning Commission meeting.

Page 90
3. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT – Public Meeting

Staff will introduce the topic and provide background information on the Comprehensive
Plan Land Use Map amendment proposed for 1000 City Beach Street.  The property is
owned by the City and is currently designated as High Density Residential.  The
proposal is to change the land use designation to Public Facilities.

Page 94
4. 2014 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – SCENIC VIEWS – Public Meeting

Staff will continue the discussion related to Scenic Views within Oak Harbor.  Staff will
present various goals and policies currently within the Comprehensive Plan that either
support or conflict with ideas surrounding the preservation of scenic views.

2



MINUTES 

May 27, 2014 

3



 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
May 27, 2014 
 
ROLL CALL:  Present: Keith Fakkema, Bruce Freeman, Sandi Peterson, Greg Wasinger and 

Kristi Jensen 
Absent: Ana Schlecht and David Fikse 
Staff Present:  Development Services Director, Steve Powers; Assistant City 
Attorney, Nikki Esparza; Senior Planners, Cac Kamak and Ethan Spoo and 
Project Engineer, Arnie Peterschmidt 

 
Chairman Fakkema called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
No comments. 
 
MINUTES: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MR. FAKKEMA SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

APPROVE THE APRIL 22, 2014 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 
 
BECKETT LANDING SUBDIVISION – Public Hearing 
Mr. Powers reported for the record that last week the City was informed of a law suit by Oak 
Harbor West View Apartments LLC against Seattle Pacific Development, LLC (PC Attachment 
1). 
A copy of the suit was provided to the City and copies were provided to the Planning 
Commission at the request of Mr. Jacob Cohen who is representing Oak Harbor West View 
Apartments.  Oak Harbor West View Apartments are an adjacent property to the west and their 
septic facilities that serve their property are located on the Beckett Landing Subdivision 
property.  Mr. Cohen notes in his cover letter his intention to ask the Planning Commission to 
either continue the matter pending a judicial outcome or to recommend denial of the preliminary 
plat pending a judicial outcome.  Planning and legal staff have reviewed this matter and are 
recommending that the Planning Commission proceed with the public hearing as scheduled.  
The basis for the recommendation is that the City should not and cannot adjudicate disputes 
between private property owners. The City’s obligation is to process the submitted preliminary 
plat application.  Any action by the Planning Commission other than the continued processing of 
the preliminary plat application may be viewed as the City interjecting itself into a private 
property matter. 
 
Mr. Powers noted that this is a quasi-judicial matter and there are questions the Assistant City 
Attorney will ask the Planning Commission in order to meet the “Appearance of Fairness 
Doctrine”. Assistant City Attorney, Nikki Esparza asked the following questions: 
 
Question No. 1 
Does any member of this Commission have any knowledge of or conducted business 
with either of the proponents or the opponents of this preliminary plat application? 
Planning Commission Member Fakkema – No  
Planning Commission Member Wasinger – No 
Planning Commission Member Freeman – No  
Planning Commission Member Jensen – Commissioner Jensen stated that she has sold Seattle 
Pacific Homes as a real estate agent, but believed she could fairly and impartially make a 
decision in this matter.  

Planning Commission 
May 27, 2014 

Page 1 of 7 
4



 

 
Planning Commission Member Peterson – Commissioner Peterson stated she lived in Crosby 
Commons which is now owned by Seattle Pacific and the homeowners association is having 
discussions with Seattle Pacific about a water bill that the homeowners association believes that 
Seattle Pacific should pay and Seattle Pacific believes they should not, but believed she could 
fairly and impartially make a decision in this matter.  
 
Assistant City Attorney Esparza asked if anyone in the audience thought that Commissioner 
Peterson and Jensen needed to recues themselves. There were none. 
 
Question No. 2 
Does any member of this Commission have any pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in 
the outcome of this proceeding? 
Planning Commission Member Fakkema – No  
Planning Commission Member Wasinger – No 
Planning Commission Member Freeman – No  
Planning Commission Member Jensen – No  
Planning Commission Member Peterson – No  
 
Question No. 3 
Does any member of this Commission know whether or not their employer has a 
financial interest in the property or area which will be impacted by the decision in this 
proceeding? 
Planning Commission Member Fakkema – No  
Planning Commission Member Wasinger – No 
Planning Commission Member Freeman – No  
Planning Commission Member Jensen – No  
Planning Commission Member Peterson – No 
 
Question No. 4 
Does any member of this Commission live or own property within 300 feet of the area 
which will be impacted by the decision in this proceeding? 
Planning Commission Member Fakkema – No  
Planning Commission Member Wasinger – No 
Planning Commission Member Freeman – No  
Planning Commission Member Jensen – No  
Planning Commission Member Peterson – No 
 
Question No. 5 
Does any member of this Commission have any special knowledge of the substance of 
the merits of this proceeding which would or could cause the Commissioner to prejudge 
the outcome of this proceeding? 
Planning Commission Member Fakkema – No  
Planning Commission Member Wasinger – No 
Planning Commission Member Freeman – No  
Planning Commission Member Jensen – No  
Planning Commission Member Peterson – No 
 
Question No. 6 

Planning Commission 
May 27, 2014 

Page 2 of 7 
5



 

Does any member of this Commission who believes that he or she cannot sit and hear 
this matter fairly and impartially, both as to the positions of the proponents and the 
opponents of this proceeding? 
  
Planning Commission Member Fakkema – Can hear this matter fairly and impartially  
Planning Commission Member Wasinger – Can hear this matter fairly and impartially 
Planning Commission Member Freeman – Can hear this matter fairly and impartially  
Planning Commission Member Jensen – Can hear this matter fairly and impartially  
Planning Commission Member Peterson – Can hear this matter fairly and impartially 
 
Question No. 7 
Has any Commissioner had any ex parte contact regarding this matter? 
Planning Commission Member Fakkema – No ex parte contacts  
Planning Commission Member Wasinger – No ex parte contacts  
Planning Commission Member Freeman – No ex parte contacts  
Planning Commission Member Jensen – No ex parte contacts  
Planning Commission Member Peterson – No ex parte contacts 
 
Question No. 8 
Is there any member of the audience who believes because of the “Appearance of 
Fairness Doctrine” that any member should be disqualified? 
There were no comments from the audience. 
 
Senior Planner Ethan Spoo gave a PowerPoint presentation (PC Attachment 2) which gave an 
overview of the subdivision, review criteria, conditions of approval and staff recommendations. 
 
Mr. Spoo reported that the applicant is proposing a north/south street and an east/west street 
which would extend Prow Street and connect on the southern property boundary to Island Place 
development. The development will be connected to both the Meadow Ridge and Island Place 
developments. There will also be an eventual connection to NW Upsala Street.  In the interim 
there will be a temporary turn around area.  There are 22 lots proposed and there is a wetland 
on the southwest portion of the property and the applicant is proposing to preserve the wetland 
and a pedestrian connection that would connect to a public ally in the Island Place development. 
The wetland is protected under state and local law which requires a standard 70 foot buffer 
width.  The applicant is proposing to reduce the wetland buffer from 70 feet to 40 feet.  
 
Mr. Spoo explained that the application review before the Planning Commission contains the two 
applications, the Preliminary Plat and a Critical Areas Permit. 
 
The purpose of the preliminary plat is to confirm that the zoning regulations are met prior to 
allowing the applicant to submit detailed construction plans or a final plat application.  
 
Mr. Spoo read the following criteria from the code: 
 

(a) Whether appropriate provisions have been made for, but not limited to, the public 
health, safety and general welfare, for open spaces, drainage ways, transit stops, 
potable water supplies, sanitary wastes, parks and recreation, playgrounds, schools 
and schoolgrounds, and all other relevant facts, including sidewalks and other 
planning features that assure safe walking conditions for students who walk to and 
from school. 

Planning Commission 
May 27, 2014 

Page 3 of 7 
6



 

(b) Whether the public use and interest will be served by the platting of the subdivision 
and dedications(s) 

Mr. Spoo stated that this is the criteria that the Planning Commission will be basing their 
recommendations to the City Council on. 
 
Mr. Spoo reported that the Critical Areas Permit pertains to the wetland on the property.  The 
purpose of the permit is to protect the functions and the values of the wetland which is required 
by both state and City of Oak Harbor adopted law.  The applicant has submitted a Wetland 
Report an Addendum to Wetland and Buffer Enhancement Reports, and a Buffer Enhancement 
Plan. Together, these documents demonstrate compliance with the City’s critical areas code 
and show how the applicant will enhance the wetland buffer with additional native species, 
maintain these plantings, and monitor them for success. Staff is recommending approval of the 
applicant’s critical areas permit request. 
 
Mr. Spoo reviewed some of the unique conditions of approval below.  The conditions of 
approval are meant to cover the things that are not shown on the plans to make sure that in the 
project continues to meet the criteria for preliminary plat.   
 

9. Prior to approval of final plat, the applicant shall delete the existing language on the face 
of the plat referencing maintenance by the City of the pedestrian trail easement in Tract 
999 and replace it with the following language: "The pedestrian bike connection is 
contained within a publicly accessible easement. All improvements and landscaping 
within the easement shall be maintained by the homeowners association. If fencing is 
installed along the length of the pedestrian bike connection it shall be no more than 6 
feet high when adjacent to the side yard areas of adjacent lots and no more than 3 feet 
high adjacent to front yard areas of adjacent lots. Fencing shall not be installed within 10 
feet of the terminus of the pedestrian/bike connection at either end." 

15. Prior to final plat approval, the applicant shall install a 6-foot high solid fence along the 
proposed buffer perimeter line to block noise and light and provide added protection 
from humans and pets. 

 
Conditions 17. through 20. pertain with the temporary turnaround for emergency vehicles and 
the traveling public by establishing an easement.  Number 18 requires the applicant to install 
improvements for the temporary turnaround.  Number 19 requires that the alignment of the 
turnaround only affect lots 7 and 8. Number 20 is a condition discusses how the temporary 
turnaround improvements will be removed and who will remove them. 
 
21. The applicant must decommission or abandon in-place the existing private septic 
 pressure line and drain field on the property in accordance with Island County Health 
 Department and State of Washington Department of Health requirements prior to the 
 issuance of construction permits on the subject site. 
 
Mr. Spoo noted that Condition number 21 is the subject of the lawsuit.  
 
Mr. Spoo stated that staff recommends that the Planning Commission conduct the public 
hearing and forward a recommendation to the City Council for approval of the preliminary plat 
and critical areas permit subject to the conditions of approval in Attachment B and to adopt the 
Planning Commission Findings of Fact in Attachment H. 
 
The public hearing was opened at 7:52 p.m. 

Planning Commission 
May 27, 2014 

Page 4 of 7 
7



 

 
Jacob Cohen (PO Box 1602, Oak Harbor) commented on condition of approval number 21 
pertaining to the private septic facilities located on the Beckett Landing property serving the 
Heathrow Apartments on land to the west owned by his client, West View Apartments, LLC. Mr. 
Cohen posited that the City should revise condition of approval number 21 to include language 
reflecting that West View Apartments, LLC and the applicant must come to a mutual agreement 
regarding decommissioning or abandonment of the septic facilities or a judicial agreement be 
reached prior to construction permits being issued. 
 
Ry McDuffy (Everett WA) commented on two issues: (1) the presence of the private septic 
facilities on the Beckett Landing property and (2) requested revisions to the conditions of 
approval. Mr. McDuffy supported condition of approval number 21 regarding the septic facilities 
as written and proposed by staff. However, Mr. McDuffy commented that conditions of approval 
numbers 9, 10, and 15 be modified or deleted as follows: 

• Condition of approval number 9:The applicant prefers to that the City own and maintain 
the pedestrian connection in Tract 999 rather than it being owned and maintained by the 
City as proposed by staff and required by the City’s subdivision code. 

• Condition of approval number 10: The applicant does not agree that bollard lighting 
needs to be provided at both ends of the pedestrian connection and prefers that this 
condition be deleted. Staff notes that bollard lighting is required by the City’s subdivision 
code. 

• Condition of approval number 15: The applicant prefers a split rail fence, rather than a 
solid fence along the boundary of the wetland buffer. The applicant’s wetland 
professional recommended that a solid fence be provided to shield the wetland from 
noise, light, and intrusion by pets and humans, hence staff’s condition to this effect. 

The public hearing was closed at 8:05 p.m. 
 
Planning Commission Discussion 
Commissioners had questions about the reduction of the standard 70 foot wetland buffer to 40 
feet and how they can achieve the reduction.  Mr. Spoo explained that reductions can be 
allowed by using the following methods, low impact land use credits, restoration credits and 
buffer averaging.  In this case the applicant is using all three methods.  
 
Ms. Peterson expressed concerns about taking the drain field from the apartments and 
encumbering another land owner with having to spending a significant amount of money to hook 
up to City sewer when they have a sufficient system.   
 
Ms. Jensen was concerned with the language in condition number 21.  She believed that the 
term “construction permits’ was not clear and should be changed to “civil permits.  She was also 
concerned the financial burden on the apartments who have been in existence for a long time.  
She didn’t think condition number 21 was detailed enough even with changing the language to 
“civil permits”.   
 
Mr. Powers explained that the condition of approval was not in any way related to whether or 
not the existing improvements were permitted or not. From the City’s perspective that is 
immaterial.  Staffs review of the preliminary plat application including the title documents that 
were submitted did not leave us any information that there was an easement so staff crafted a 
condition of approval that acknowledges that there are improvements on the property that 
serves another property but it isn’t clear as to the means by which the improvements are located 

Planning Commission 
May 27, 2014 

Page 5 of 7 
8



 

on the property and the City is working very hard not to be in between two parties in a private 
land use private property issue. Or focus is on what is the logical thing for to put a condition of 
approval on from a preliminary plat approval perspective and from a construction perspective.  
So staff’s recommendation is that there should be no construction that takes place on this site 
until those facilities are taken care of in an appropriate and approved fashion.  
 
Mr. Wasinger agreed that condition number 21 says that no construction will take place until the 
situation is resolved. 
 
Mr. Fakkema said that Seattle Pacific has submitted an application and under the requirements 
of the City code we have to recommend approval or denial of the application based on the code 
requirements and not on what is going on behind the scenes.  We recognize that there are 
some other issues at play which will be resolve later in one way or the other and it doesn’t 
matter to us which way they get resolved as long as they get resolved.  Until that happens 
nothing is going to happen other than the approval of the preliminary plat. The burden is on 
Seattle Pacific to correct the situation.  The worst we can do is nothing and have Seattle Pacific 
having resolved the situation come back later asking why we wasted years of their time. 
 
Assistant City Attorney Esparza confirmed that it is the legal opinion of the City’s council that 
this is not a proper basis for an extension of this particular timeframe without the consent of 
Seattle Pacific and Seattle Pacific has not given consent. 
 
Mr. Freeman said this is the first step in a long process and the 21 conditions to address the 
concerns are sufficient and nothing will happen until the problem is resolved. 
 
ACTION: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MR. WASINGER SECONDED A MOTION TO 

RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE PRELIMINARY 
PLAT AND CRITICAL AREAS PERMIT FOR BECKETT LANDING SUBJECT 
TO THE CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL IN ATTACHMENT B AS WRITTEN, 
MOTION CARRIED BY A VOTE OF 3 IN FAVOR (FAKKEMA, WASINGER 
AND FREEMAN) AND 2 OPPOSED (JENSEN AND PETERSON).  

 
ACTION: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MR. WASINGER SECONDED A MOTION TO 

APPROVE THE PLANNING COMMISSION’S FINDING OF FACT, 
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW RECORD OF DECISION.  MOTION CARRIED BY A 
VOTE OF 4 IN FAVOR AND 1 OPPOSED (JENSEN). 

 
 
WATER SYSTEM PLAN – Public Hearing 
Senior Planner Ethan Spoo gave a PowerPoint presentation (PC Attachment 3) which gave an 
overview of what the Water Plan is, why it is important to the Planning Commission, the required 
public outreach. 
 
Project Engineer Arnie Peterschmidt covered the portion of the PowerPoint presentation that 
discusses the Water Use Efficiency Goals. 
 
Mr. Spoo recommended that Planning Commission conduct the public hearing and invite 
comments from the public and consumers on the Water System Plan and the Water Efficiency 
Use Goals and then forward a recommendation for approval to the City Council. 
 
 

Planning Commission 
May 27, 2014 

Page 6 of 7 
9



 

Planning Commission Discussion 
Planning Commission questioned Mr. Peterschmidt about the project schedule, wells, and the 
Campbell Lake project.   
 
The public hearing was opened at 9:05 p.m.  Seeing none the public hearing was closed. 
 
ACTION: MS. JENSEN MOVED, MS. PETERSON SECONDED A MOTION TO 

FORWARD A RECOMMENDATION FOR APPROVAL OF THE DRAFT 
WATER PLAN AND THE WATER USE EFFICIENCY GOALS.  MOTION 
CARRIED. 

 
2014 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – SCENIC VIEWS – Public meeting 
Mr. Kamak asked the Commission to continue this item to the next Planning Commission 
meeting.  Planning Commission agreed.  
 
MEDICAL MARIJUANA – Public meeting 
Mr. Powers reported that there was nothing new to report since last month.  
 
Ms. Jensen asked if there were any applications.  Mr. Powers said there was a moratorium for 
medical marijuana.  There were a couple of application in the greater community area for 
recreational marijuana uses and one in the city limits that was in a location that was not zoned 
according to the City’s rules and the City has submitted information back to the Liquor Control 
Board indicating that we oppose a retail license application at that location because it doesn’t 
meet the zone that our community has established. The other location is in our Urban Growth 
Area but not in the City limits. 
 
ADJOURN: 9:10 p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by: Katherine Gifford 

Planning Commission 
May 27, 2014 

Page 7 of 7 
10



ATTACHMENT E 

PC ATTACHMENT 1 

Summons and Complaint filed by 

Oak Harbor West View Apartments LLC 
against  

Seattle Pacific Development LLC 

10711



10812



10913



11014



11115



11216



11317



11418



11519



11620



11721



11822



11923



12024



12125



12226



12327



12428



12529



12630



12731



12832



12933



13034



13135



13236



13337



13438



13539



13640



13741



13842



13943



14044



14145



14246



14347



14448



14549



14650



14751



14852



14953



15054



15155



15256



15357



15458



15559



15660



15761



15862



15963



16064



16165



16266



16367



16468



16569



16670



16771



16872



16973



17074



17175



17276



17377



17478



17579



17680



17781



17882



17983



 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report – May 27, 2014 

 Overview 

o Project 

o Applications 

 Review Criteria 

 Conditions of Approval 

 Recommendation 

PC ATTACHMENT 2 

84



 Preliminary Plat 

o Same as a subdivision

o Purpose: confirm that zoning regulations are met prior to detailed 

construction drawings 

o Criteria 

• “Whether appropriate provisions have been made for, but not limited to, 

the public health, safety and general welfare, for open spaces, drainage 

ways, transit stops,  potable water supplies sanitary wastes, parks and 

recreation, playgrounds, schools and schoolgrounds, and all other 

relevant facts, including sidewalks and other planning features that 

assure safe walking conditions for student who walk to and from 

school.” 

• Whether the public use and interest will be served by the platting of the 

subdivision and dedication(s) 

 Critical Areas Permit 

o Def: in this case a wetland

o Purpose: protect the functions and values of the wetland. Required 

by State and local law 

o Applicant proposal: reduce buffer width from 70’ to 40’ using low

impact land use credits, restoration credits and buffer averaging 

o Trigger for critical areas permit: buffer reductions

o Criteria 

• Preserve functions and values of the wetland = wetland is no worse off

• Habitat, water quality, recreation, vegetation, soils, flood attenuation,  food

chain support, ground water recharge and discharge, erosion control, etc. 

• Wetland Report: “It is our professional opinion that the buffer averaging 

plan will achieve a no net loss of buffer functions.” 

 Purpose: subsequent plans (construction & final plat) must 

comply 

 Major Categories (Exhibit B) 

o General, Landscaping, Plat Drawing, Critical Areas, Engineering

 Selected Conditions 

o Some standard, some not 

o #9: replace language to require HOA to maintain pedestrian/bike 

connection 

o #15: install 6’ high solid fence next to wetland buffer

o #17 - #20: pertain to temporary turnaround establishment and 

conversion to permanent road 

• #17: establish access easement

• #18: install improvements

• #19: alignment 

• #20: removal of temporary improvements and installation of 

permanent 

o #21: decommission or abandon the septic drain field and force 

main prior to issuance of construction permits 

PC ATTACHMENT 2 

85



 Conduct the public hearing 

 Forward a recommendation to the City Council for approval 

of the preliminary plat and critical areas permit subject to 

the conditions of approval in Attachment B 

 Adopt the findings of fact per Attachment H 

PC ATTACHMENT 2 

86



PC ATTACHMENT 2 

87



PC ATTACHMENT 2 

88



Comprehensive Plan Land Use 

Amendment 

Public Meeting 

89



CITY OF OAK HARBOR PLANNING COMMISSION 

TO: PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: CAC KAMAK, SENIOR PLANNER 

SUBJECT: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT - LAND USE CHANGE – 

1000 SE CITY BEACH STREET 

DATE: JUNE 24, 2014 

CC: STEVE POWERS, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 

PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this memo to introduce the Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change 

the land use designation for 1000 SE City Beach Street from High Density Residential to 

Public Facilities.  This item was first placed on the Comprehensive Plan Docket in 2013.  

The intent of the change was to designate the property to allow use of the site as a private 

burial ground/cemetery for the Swinomish Indian Tribal Community.   

PROCESS: 

The process to amend the Comprehensive Plan is regulated by OHMC 18.15.  This land 

use amendment was placed on the preliminary docket in 2013 by the Development 

Services Director in accordance with OHMC 18.15.030(1)(d) and approved by the City 

Council on March 5, 2013.  Public notification on the project will be in accordance to the 

requirements set forth in OHMC 18.20.380(5).  The land use change along with the other 

comprehensive plan amendments will be reviewed by the applicable criteria established 

under OHMC 18.15.080.   

BACKGROUND 

The property at 1000 SE City Beach Street is owned by the City and designated as High 

Density Residential.  The property was placed on the 2013 docket for a land use change 

since the City determined that the current High Density Residential land use designation 

will never be realized under City ownership. A more appropriate designation would be 

Public Facilities since most land owned by the City is designated as Public Facilities and 

used as such.   

At the time this property was placed on the Comprehensive Plan Amendment Docket, the 

property was under consideration to be used as a private burial ground/cemetery to 

accommodate the cultural resources that were uncovered with the construction of Pioneer 

Way.  Work on recovering the cultural resources was still in progress at that time and no 

firm decision was made on whether this land may be needed for that purpose.  Since a 

Memorandum of Settlement has now been reached between the City and the Swinomish 

Indian Tribal Community, this property is slated to accommodate the archaeological and 

cultural resources uncovered during the Pioneer Way project.   

90



2 

DISCUSSION 

Now that the City has reached a settlement with the Swinomish Indian Tribal 

Community, the property is slated to be used as a private burial ground/cemetery for the 

Swinomish Indian Tribal Community.  The Memorandum of Settlement also includes 

provisions for the City to deliver a quitclaim deed for the property to the Swinomish 

Indian Tribal Community after an action is taken on the amendment.  If the 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment is approved, the site will be exclusively used for 

spiritual and cultural purposes, including the burial ground/cemetery and if the Tribe 

elects, a cultural center and/or memorial.  

From a Comprehensive Plan Land Use designation perspective, the intended use of the 

property can be broadly categorized under a burial ground/cemetery use which fits with 

the Public Facilities designation.  Existing cemeteries (Maple Leaf and Fircrest) within 

Oak Harbors Urban Growth Area are designated as Public Facilities, and therefore it is 

logical to designate 1000 SE City Beach Street as such. 

Cemeteries are passive uses and are compatible with most land uses.  Existing cemeteries 

in Oak Harbor are surrounded by low density residential and high density residential uses 

and have not generated any negative impacts.  1000 SE City Beach Street is surrounded 

by a mixture of High Density Residential, Commercial and Residential Office 

designations (see attached map). 

ACTION 

No action on this item is required at this time.  This memo is intended to introduce the 

topic and initiate discussion.  Property owners within 300 feet of the property have been 

notified of this item on the Planning Commission’s agenda.  If members of the public 

would like to comment on the topic, the Planning Commission is encouraged to accept 

public comments.  A formal public hearing for this Comprehensive Plan Amendment will 

be scheduled at an upcoming Planning Commission meeting.  

91



1000 City Beach Street – Land Use Designation 

92



2014 Comprehensive Plan 

Amendment 

Scenic Views 

Public Meeting 

93



CITY OF OAK HARBOR PLANNING COMMISSION 

TO: PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: CAC KAMAK, SENIOR PLANNER 

SUBJECT: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – SCENIC VIEWS 

DATE: JUNE 24, 2014 

CC: STEVE POWERS, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES TEAM 

The Scenic View discussion was postponed at the last meeting to the June 24, 2014 meeting.  Staff 
will provide a short presentation on the topic at the meeting.  Please refer to the materials provided 
with the May 27, 2014 staff report.  If you would like copies of the report, please contact Kathy 
Gifford at 360-279-4512. 

94


	AGENDA - June 24, 2014
	MINUTES - May 27, 2014
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT - LAND USE CHANGE –1000 SE CITY BEACH STREET
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – SCENIC VIEWS



